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WEILAND_REBECCA

From: Kathryn Jeffery < >
Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 7:38 PM
To: AMINOFF_SUSAN-AOL; GREENSTEIN_NANCY; PETERS_TOM; QUINONES_MARGARET; SNELL_BARRY; 

RADER_ROB; ROY_SION
Cc: SENIOR_ADMIN_STAFF; ADAMS_JOHNNIE; SMITH_GRACE
Subject: By The River Rivanna

SMC Trustees, 
 
This weekend the SMC Theatre department is scheduled to open a play wriƩen by a former SMC employee‐
public informaƟon officer, Bruce Smith and directed by SMC Professor Perviz Sawoski. It seems that a student 
in her class associated with or who was aware of the play contacted Professor Sherri Bradford in Black 
Collegians to share concern about the sensiƟve and controversial content of the primary storyline of the play, 
which deals with a romanƟcized perspecƟve of a relaƟonship between an enslaved person and the slave 
owner of that plantaƟon. Sherri Bradford and Jermaine Junius, a new SMC communicaƟons instructor who is 
also chair of the Pan African Alliance, both went to watch a rehearsal of the opening act of the play and 
reportedly become to so overwhelmed that they could not stay to watch the whole play.  
 
Interim VP Jason Beardsley called my aƩenƟon to this developing situaƟon on this past Friday, and since that 
Ɵme he has met with Perviz Sawoski to request the opening of the play be possibly delayed in the hope that 
there could be a discussion with those speaking out about the possible negaƟve impact of the play on students 
and employees. This was done in the interest of concern for SMC community members, especially students. 
This intervenƟon approach was NOT an aƩempt to cancel the play; but, rather to acknowledge the issues 
being surfaced and to communicate sensiƟvity regarding the difficult and volaƟle subject of slavery in America. 
 
During Senior Staff meeƟng today we discussed ways to help our community through this dilemma. We were 
informed by legal counsel Bob Myers that freedom of speech has a legal basis and he advised against any 
administraƟve acƟon that could be perceived as an aƩempt to cancel the producƟon. We did NOT aƩempt to 
cancel the show. AddiƟonally, there is the issue of academic freedom, which governs how a faculty member 
teaches their classes. And the producƟon of this play is part of a class taught by Professor Sawoski. 
 
I am wriƟng this email to you to provide background should you be contacted by college personnel or students 
expressing their point of view for or against the play. Also, you should know that the Pan African Alliance along 
with members of other affinity groups at SMC are planning to protest the play outside the theatre during its 
opening this weekend, Oct, 22‐24 and perhaps even next weekend as well. The play is scheduled to run for 
two weekends.  
 
I have talked with several of you over the past few days to let you know of this developing situaƟon. I assure 
you; we are working in earnest to strategically and respecƞully navigate the space between the principle of 
academic freedom, freedom of speech and the care we must demonstrate for SMC community members who 
have openly expressed sadness for what several feel is a lack of sensiƟvity to the subject of slavery, one of the 
play’s central themes. I have discussed this approach with faculty leaders of Academic Senate, Faculty 
AssociaƟon, Senior Staff, Associated Students, and the Student Equity Center. 
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WEILAND_REBECCA

From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < >
Sent: Sunday, October 15, 2023 10:28 AM
To: SAWOSKI_PERVIZ; CARTER_DIONE; KING_SASHA
Subject: By The River Rivanna email to students

Importance: High

Hi Perviz, 
 
I would like to send the following email to students—possibly as a video message since the email is so long.  
 
I would like to start reaching out to students as soon as possible. Please take a look and share your thoughts. 
We can hop on the phone. I am copying Dee Dee and Sasha here as they may be assisƟng me with the calls 
and logisƟcs.  
 
Bruce has contacted me, but I have not responded. You are my primary contact on this maƩer. I will reach out 
to Bruce as a courtesy, nonetheless. 
 
Thank you, 
Jason  
 
 
Dear Students, 
 
I hope this message finds you well as the SMC community navigates through an important maƩer regarding 
the scheduled producƟon of By The River Rivanna by G. Bruce Smith. As you may know, this producƟon has 
sparked concerns within our community, parƟcularly in regard to its portrayal of the complex dynamics 
between a white slave owner and an enslaved African man. As the Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs 
at SMC, it is my job to help the college navigate this issue gripping our community and to guide us toward the 
best possible outcome for all involved. Since I cannot help guide the college without hearing from the students 
at the college, I am wriƟng to you with a request for input. And I will apologize now for this really long email.  
 
Before I go any further, I must be candid about two things: First, and you may already have heard this, many in 
the SMC community feel this play should not be produced. I am one of those people. However, at the very 
same Ɵme, a second thing is also true: You, the students, your hearts and minds, are the most important 
concern in all of this discussion. I want you to know that. Everyone wants what is best for you; everyone is 
concerned about how you will be impacted by this play—whether it is produced or not produced. That may 
sound patronizing, but I can assure you it is true. Those who wish the play would not be produced, and those 
who would like to see it on the stage—both groups are absolutely focused on your wellbeing. In fact, it is out 
of that concern that I write to you now: I am reaching out because your voices must be heard in this 
discussion.   
 
To start, I want to acknowledge the remarkable commitment and dedicaƟon that each of you has 
demonstrated by preparing for this producƟon. Your courage to take the stage and the tremendous effort you 
have invested in preparing for your role are truly commendable. No maƩer what happens, whether you are a 
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lead actor or a lighƟng tech, nothing can take away your accomplishment as an arƟst thus far. You have 
worked very hard to prepare for your tech rehearsal on Tuesday. You should be proud of that work.  
 
In fact, I am wriƟng to ask you about your work—how you think and feel about your work on a play that some 
consider very controversial. Now, I realize that asking for your view of the play at this point in its producƟon 
may seem strange. We are well into the semester, and your costumes are nearly ready. It’s late, and I 
understand. It’s precisely because you are so close to the culminaƟng performances that I am reaching out to 
speak with you directly. I would really like to know your thoughts and feelings about the play, so I am asking 
that you take 10 minutes to think about the quesƟons below and let me know when you and I—or a member 
of my team in Academic Affairs—can speak with you about your responses to the quesƟons below. You are 
also welcome to respond to the quesƟons by email, if you would prefer. 
 
Please know that this is an opportunity for you to express your views, and there is no right or wrong response. 
Your honest feedback will be instrumental in shaping our approach. 
 
Your responses will remain confidenƟal and be used solely for the purpose of understanding your 
perspecƟves. Your responses will not be shared with your instructor.  
 
If you would like to talk over the phone or by Zoom with me or one of two Deans in Academic Affairs who will 
be assisƟng me with these conversaƟons, please let me know by email and I will reach out to set something up 
for Monday or Tuesday (ideally). 
 
QuesƟons: 
 

1. How do you feel about your involvement in the play? 
2. Have you personally encountered any challenges or concerns while preparing for your role in the play? 
3. If you were able to step away from the producƟon of the play without any negaƟve impact on your 

grade in the class, would you step away? 
 
Please know that your courage parƟcipaƟng in this play is greatly appreciated, and I am here to support you 
throughout this challenging conversaƟon. Please take your Ɵme to consider these quesƟons, and if you are 
comfortable, share your thoughts with us by replying to this email. 
 
Thank you for your dedicaƟon, and I look forward to hearing from you. 
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WEILAND_REBECCA

From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < >
Sent: Sunday, October 15, 2023 5:21 PM
To: MUNOZ_MARIA
Subject: FW: Potential censorship of our production

Here’s that exchange in which you are mentioned.  I had a conversation with Bruce Smith earlier today.  He is digging in, 
like Perviz, on the notion that the students should get to have a private performance by invitation only.   
 
-Jason 
 

From: SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < > 
Date: Sunday, October 15, 2023 at 4:03 PM 
To: BEARDSLEY_JASON < >, LONDON_JAMAR < >, 
MORSE_PETER <MORSE_PETER@smc.edu> 
Cc: KING_SASHA >, CARTER_DIONE > 
Subject: Re: Potential censorship of our production 

Thank You. 
 

Perviz Sawoski   

Chair, Theatre Arts   

Santa Monica College   

   

   

she/ her 

From: BEARDSLEY_JASON > 
Sent: Sunday, October 15, 2023 4:02 PM 
To: SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < >; LONDON_JAMAR >; MORSE_PETER 
< > 
Cc: KING_SASHA < >; CARTER_DIONE < > 
Subject: Re: Potential censorship of our production  
  
Good afternoon, 
 
Perviz, thank you for including me and Sasha on your email.  I agree with the way you have characterized one of the 
conversations and set of options that you and I discussed.   As you may know, even the private viewing of the play is a 
significant concern among some SMC faculty, staff, and students. 
 

With understandable concerns on both sides, we are going to have to work hard to find an amicable solution.   
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If we chose to frame this issue as a freedom of speech issue, and only that, then I can see your point 
about the immateriality of the script. 
  
But it isn’t just a freedom of speech issue.  
  
Imagine that this play had been written a year ago, and the Theatre Arts department decided to solicit 
feedback from the SMC community. Almost without a doubt, we would not be here today because the 
issue of our community would have then been addressed, and a different play would have been 
produced, one that did not make people immediately upset to be associated with SMC and to have 
colleagues who are proceeding with so little regard for the emotional and spiritual wellbeing of their 
coworkers. 
  
So before we thrust this situation into the difficult framework of “free speech” and “academic freedom,” 
let’s please see it and address it as a community concern, first. Peter, many in that community are 
faculty members, whom you represent. I hope you will reach out to hear their concerns. I am also 
available to talk. 
  
Best, 
Jason  
  

From: MORSE_PETER >  
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 11:50 AM 
To: BEARDSLEY_JASON >; LONDON_JAMAR < >; 
SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < > 
Cc: KING_SASHA < >; CARTER_DIONE > 
Subject: Re: Potential censorship of our production 
  
Folks, 
  
The script is immaterial to this situation. 
  
This is an academic freedom and first amendment/free speech issue and the content of the play 
is not something that any of us should be pretending that we can assess - or even 
should consider assessing. 
  
Peter  

 
From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < > 
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 11:45 AM 
To: LONDON_JAMAR < >; SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < > 
Cc: MORSE_PETER < >; KING_SASHA < >; CARTER_DIONE 
< > 
Subject: RE: Potential censorship of our production  
  
Here you go. 
  
Best, 
Jason  
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310-434-4113   
she/ her 

 
From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < > 
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 2:00 PM 
To: SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < >; MORSE_PETER < >; 
LONDON_JAMAR > 
Cc: KING_SASHA < >; CARTER_DIONE > 
Subject: RE: Potential censorship of our production  
  
Hi Perviz, 
  
Before we get too head long into accusations of censorship, I want to re-emphasize the element of 
community here. Perviz, I assume that you feel the play makes a positive contribution to our nation’s 
attempt to mitigate the harmful legacy of slavery. I don’t think you would be involved with the 
production unless you felt that way.  
  
So, with that assumption in mind, it doesn’t seem like a stretch to make the further assumption that you 
would not want to be involved in a theatrical production that undermines the struggle to undo the 
legacy of slavery. If this assumption seems fair, then please consider the strangeness of this moment—a 
moment when many of our African American colleagues are deeply upset by the idea that this play 
would be produced. These are colleagues who have read the latest script, as I have. They are deeply 
upset, as I am, because they do not see the play as helping to mitigate the harmful effects of slavery on 
African Americans; in fact, they see the play as inflicting further harm.  
  
Given that I know you mean well, that you mean to contribute positively to the American dialogue about 
race, racism, and the legacy of white supremacy, I am struggling to understand why you would want to 
go forward with a production that is viewed as hurtful by the very people whom you had meant to 
support. This is what I mean when I say that before this is a censorship issue, it is a community issue. 
And, as a community member, I am asking you to address the community issue in a meaningful way.  
  
Finally, you ask for specific citations of objectionable scenes and dialogue: Off the cuff, I can say that any 
scene in which Jackson exchanges his freedom and subjectivity for bondage is deeply troubling; there 
are at least two such scenes.  Similarly, the mirroring of that relationship in Aidan and Grady is also 
problematic; Aidan in some ways is manipulating Grady’s ‘destiny’ and holding him captive by 
withholding information about him. That manipulation mirrors the master-slave dynamic to which 
Jackson is beholden. Then there is the issue of Charlotte’s description of her being raped by Tom 
Murdoch. I don’t have words to describe how upsetting that clause is to me, and how offensive it must 
be to others. Suggesting that an enslaved woman could have been a willing participant in her own rape 
because she wanted a child is just ludicrous.  
  
Lastly, I come back to the same question:  If they Theatre Arts department wants to contribute to a 
healthier, stronger community, why are they attempting to produce a play that will undermine and 
fracture our community?  
  
-Jason     
  

From: SAWOSKI_PERVIZ < >  
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 1:31 PM 
To: MORSE_PETER >; BEARDSLEY_JASON >; 
LONDON_JAMAR < > 
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Please call me at your earliest convenience.  
  
Thank you, 
Jason 
  
  
Jason Beardsley (he/him) 
Interim Vice President, Academic Affairs 
Santa Monica College  
1900 Pico Blvd. | Santa Monica, CA 90405 
T 310-434-8054 
 
<image001.png> 
 
smc.edu/resources 
  
  
  
  
  

From: WARD_EMMA < > 
Date: Thursday, October 12, 2023 at 7:18 PM 
To: BEARDSLEY_JASON < > 
Subject: Invitation – By the River Rivanna 

Sent on behalf of Perviz Sawoski & the Theatre Arts Department  
  
Jason Beardsley  
Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs 
  
Dear Jason Beardsley,  
  
We would like to invite you to attend a performance of our upcoming production, By the River 
Rivanna, a new play by G. Bruce Smith, directed by Perviz Sawoski, musical direction by Frank 
Basile. The show opens on Friday, October 20th, at 7:30 pm (for all other dates and times, 
please see the attached flyer).  
  
If you are able to attend, we would be happy to issue two complimentary tickets to you. To 
claim your tickets, please reach out to our Administrative Assistant at  or 

. We ask that you provide the date and time that you wish to attend, as well as 
your preferred email address and phone number.  
  
We hope you will be able to attend our production. We would greatly enjoy seeing you there.  
  
Thank you so much!  
  
Cheers, 
Emma 
--- 
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Emma Ward 
Administrative Assistant I, Theatre Arts 
Santa Monica College   

 
she/her 
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WEILAND_REBECCA

From: SMITH_GRACE < >
Sent: Monday, October 23, 2023 5:07 PM
To: Victor Chambers; BEARDSLEY_JASON; Ashanti Blaize; 
Cc: CEBELIHLE HLATSHWAYO; Renee Bartlett-Webber; Samaiya Kirby; SMITH_GRACE
Subject: RE: PLEASE RESPOND: Information on Students Voting for Play Cancelation

Importance: High

Victor: 
 
Thank you so much for your patience! Below is the information that we are able to provide. I hope this is 
helpful. I’ve pasted your questions and SMC’s responses immediately under in bold. Good luck with this story. 
Thank you and the Corsair staff for your important work in keeping us all informed. 
 
1: How was the decision to ask the cast members to vote on the play’s premiere made? Why was it Jason 
Beardsley who conducted the process on Thursday night? 

Jason Beardsley did not conduct the process.  
  
2: Were Bruce Smith and Perviz Sawoksi consulted and in agreement with having the vote decide whether the 
production moved forward or not? 

 The college consulted with the play's director/Theatre Arts Department Chair Perviz Sawoski. 
  
3: What was the final vote tally? Can you confirm what Bruce Smith has shared with us:  
"The first vote resulted: 9 wanted to cancel, 7 wanted to go ahead and 4 wanted to delay. Voted on a private 
showing for family and friends: 12 wanted to go ahead, and 8 didn’t want to go ahead with the show. The 
students had a discussion and decided if there were 8 people who didn’t want to go forward, that they shouldn’t 
go forward at all.” 
Confirmed 
  
  
4: Finally, what did the SMC administration plan for the students' academic standing if the play were to be 
canceled? How would it affect their grades and their path towards graduation? 
Grading is the responsibility of the instructor per Title 5 and SMC Administrative Regulation 5310 
(Grades, Article 5300: Academic Standards). 
It is our understanding that there will be no negative consequences to the students. 
 
 
 

From: Victor Chambers < >  
Sent: Monday, October 23, 2023 12:47 PM 
To: SMITH_GRACE < >; BEARDSLEY_JASON >; Ashanti Blaize 
< >;  
Cc: CEBELIHLE HLATSHWAYO < >; Renee Bartlett-Webber 
< >; Samaiya Kirby < > 
Subject: PLEASE RESPOND: Information on Students Voting for Play Cancelation 
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From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < >
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2023 7:21 PM
To: SULLIVAN_LINDA; RUDOLPH_ROBERT; TRAUTWEIN_PAUL
Subject: Re: Urgent - please read

Hi All, 
 
With apologies for the alarm, I would ask that you take a pause on any action related to my original request. I will circle 
back next week to confirm one direction or the other with you. 
 
Thanks, 
Jason  
 

From: BEARDSLEY_JASON < > 
Date: Friday, October 13, 2023 at 7:13 PM 
To: SULLIVAN_LINDA < >, RUDOLPH_ROBERT , 
TRAUTWEIN_PAUL < > 
Subject: Urgent - please read 

Hi Linda, Paul, and  Rob, 
  
I apologize for contacƟng you on a Friday evening.  I would like to pull a theatrical producƟon from the Ɵcket sales 
website that appears to be powered by HomeTown TickeƟng. 
  
hƩps://www.smc.edu/calendar/Ɵckets.php 
  
The following event should be removed or disabled as far as Ɵcket sales go: 
  
By the River Rivanna 
  
Please call me if a conversaƟon would help:  
  
Thank you, 
Jason  
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From: BRADFORD_SHERRI < >
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2023 3:50 PM
To: BEARDSLEY_JASON
Subject: Student in a theater arts class

Hi Jason, 
 
One of our student workers shared with us today that she is in a theater arts class. She said that she is 
required to attend ALL of the productions this semester including the River Rivanna and has to write 
about it. She does not want to attend at all.  
 
I asked her permission to tell you about it and she is also willing to talk with you if needed. Her class is 
Theater Arts 31 and her name is Esthela Moncada.  
 
Sherri Bradford, M.S. 
Program Leader & Counseling Faculty 
Santa Monica College 
Black Collegians Program Umoja Community 
Direct Line:  

 
www.smc.edu/blackcollegians 
www.umojacommunity.org 
Follow us on Instagram @blackcollegianssmc 

Black Collegians Program 

 
 



 
: 

 Sherri said she’d welcome a call from you and to share her phone # with you. So 
plz give her a call vs email.  
 
10/14/23 11:12 AM 
 Good morning, curious if u spoke with Dr.J and Sherri?  And how it went? 
 
10/14/23 1:41 PM 
Jason Beardsley: 
 Would you be free to talk?  I just got off phone with Perviz  
 
10/15/23 6:11 PM 

: 
 Let me know if u want to talk tonight or tomorrow 
 
Jason Beardsley: 
 Now?   
 
10/16/23 5:36 PM 

: 
 Just wanted to let u know that tickets can still be purchased.  
 
10/16/23 7:23 PM 
 Sorry I missed ur call. Let me know if u want to connect tonight or tomorrow 
 
10/19/23 11:25 PM 
Jason Beardsley: 
 Mums the word but it’s done.  
 
10/20/23 7:05 AM 

: 
 Yay!!!! Thank you Jason for your leadership throughout this whole process!  You 
truly walked the walk!  Now I hope you can truly enjoy a bday weekend celebrating your 
awesomeness!  I appreciate u. Pls take some time to take care of yourself.  
 
Jason Beardsley: 
 I would not have been able to do it without you, Maria. Truly.  Your counsel and 
steadfastness were absolutely critical—and ARE absolutely critical.  Thank you.  And 
may you enjoy a peaceful weekend with your family, as well! 
 
10/20/23 3:37 PM 
 Great email re: healing session  
 

: 
 Thank you!  I needed to hear this  



They can see the play when/ if it opens. I will not let persons come in and 
undermine the thought and work that has been put into the play by all involved. Theatre 
is a place for challenging, shocking and thought provoking ideas. It is not meant to 
coddle the community.  

Jason Beardsley: 
Hi Perviz—I would like to update you on the performance dates and the conditions 

under which they may ensue.  Please let me know when we can talk.  Thank you.   
Good morning, Perviz.  I wanted you to know that I do not see any ticket sales 

advertised for Rivanna on our website—and I was not aware that they would be taken 
down nor involved in any decision to do so.  An advertisement for Avenue Q is now 
apparent.  I have asked Rob for more information.   

:
I had pulled it, but now we are republishing it. 

Jason Beardsley: 
Thank you for your note. 
I am going to make a survey box for you, in case you would like to use it.  Will 

have Yes and No cards and a question: Should the play go on?  You are free to use it 
or not.  I can bring it to you after the rehearsal or even leave it somewhere safe for you.  
Let me know  

:
Maybe 3 levels- 

Jason Beardsley: 
Sorry what is 3 levels? 

:
Yes, no, pause until next week 

Jason Beardsley: 



If there is a place I should leave it, or if you would like me to bring it over after the 
rehearsal, just let me know.  I am flexible and will be here.  Thank you.  

:
Maybe bring after the run we’re about to start. So in 2 hours 

Jason Beardsley: 
Ok thank you.  Will do so.  I’ll stand by for your text in about two hours? 

:
Ok 
Come now 
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From: Kathryn Jeffery < >
Sent: Friday, October 20, 2023 5:51 AM
To: SENIOR_ADMIN_STAFF; ADAMS_JOHNNIE; SMITH_GRACE; FILA_SUSAN; 

MUNOZ_MARIA
Subject: Update on By the River Rivanna

Everyone, 
 
On Thursday evening I attended the full dress rehearsal of By the River Rivsnna. At the end of the rehearsal, I asked the 
cast if they would consider pausing the opening by one weekend so that a facilitated college forum could be held to 
discuss the play and hear from the director, cast and others. The cast weighed in on whether to 1) pause the opening 
one week. 2) open as scheduled, or 3) not open the play. The cast voted to when asked if they wanted to have special 
performance for friends and family, the cast voted overwhelmingly against doing this.  
 
I want a knowledge that the Director had incorporated input she recieved and showed concern for the students in the 
show and the broader SMC community. She seemed very open to addressing concerns that had been expressed over the 
past two weeks.   
 
Summary; The cast of By the River Rivanna has voted to not open the show as scheduled. 
 
Kathryn 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 
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of the opening act of the play and reportedly become to so overwhelmed that they could not stay to
watch the whole play.
 
Interim VP Jason Beardsley called my attention to this developing situation on this past Friday, and since
that time he has met with Perviz Sawoski to request the opening of the play be possibly delayed in the
hope that there could be a discussion with those speaking out about the possible negative impact of the
play on students and employees. This was done in the interest of concern for SMC community members,
especially students. This intervention approach was NOT an attempt to cancel the play; but, rather to
acknowledge the issues being surfaced and to communicate sensitivity regarding the difficult and
volatile subject of slavery in America.
 
During Senior Staff meeting today we discussed ways to help our community through this dilemma. We
were informed by legal counsel Bob Myers that freedom of speech has a legal basis and he advised
against any administrative action that could be perceived as an attempt to cancel the production. We did
NOT attempt to cancel the show. Additionally, there is the issue of academic freedom, which governs
how a faculty member teaches their classes. And the production of this play is part of a class taught by
Professor Sawoski.
 
I am writing this email to you to provide background should you be contacted by college personnel or
students expressing their point of view for or against the play. Also, you should know that the Pan
African Alliance along with members of other affinity groups at SMC are planning to protest the play
outside the theatre during its opening this weekend, Oct, 22-24 and perhaps even next weekend as well.
The play is scheduled to run for two weekends.
 
I have talked with several of you over the past few days to let you know of this developing situation. I
assure you; we are working in earnest to strategically and respectfully navigate the space between the
principle of academic freedom, freedom of speech and the care we must demonstrate for SMC
community members who have openly expressed sadness for what several feel is a lack of sensitivity to
the subject of slavery, one of the play’s central themes. I have discussed this approach with faculty
leaders of Academic Senate, Faculty Association, Senior Staff, Associated Students, and the Student
Equity Center.
 
I have asked Interim VP Jason Beardsley to communicate to Perviz that a statement should be read to the
audience at the start of each performance of the show to ensure the audience is made aware that the
play contains sensitive content related to slavery that could be disturbing. Also, VP Michael Tuitasi is
working with SMCPD Chief Adams to have trained personnel present on opening night to help manage a
peaceful protest and/or deescalate tensions that might arise. And we are hoping to provide a facilitated
talk-back discussion/session after some nights of the play to allow the audience, director, playwright, and
actors to debrief what has been experienced during the performance.
 
If you have questions, please feel free to contact me.
 
Kathryn
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experienced, that we could not stay for Act Two.  These were the takeaways and the lingering questions
Sherri, and I were left with: 

The play is not historically accurate
The play trafficked themes of sexual abuse of black male and female bodies 
How are we vetting people, so harm doesn't come to students and staff who are allowed access to
the campus community (is the criteria steeped in an equity framework)
This equity issue has not been publicly addressed by senior administration
The unfolding of this event is the embodiment of systemic racism at its core
How we got here, why we continue to stay here, and the institutional response

We appreciate that ongoing dialogue has taken place this week among the ranks of senior
administration of the college concerning pausing the production; so, campus wide equity focused
community conversations could take place to examine the best ways to mitigate harm.  However, we are
aware that a decision has been made to allow the production to proceed as planned and debut this
Friday.  

We feel compelled to share with you that the decision to soldier forward leaves us deeply concerned on
behalf of the constituents we represent and our students.  It is understood that the college has an
obligation to uphold "academic freedom" and "the free exercise of speech."  Nevertheless, moving
forward with the production has left a cross section of Black employees, Black students, and our equity
allies/stakeholders to feel abandoned by the college.  This action has further signaled that our need to
be protected and affirmed has gone unnoticed; along with our social/emotional wellbeing and health
being perceived as expendable.  While it may not have been the intention to cause this harm, the action
of allowing the production to proceed, nonetheless, is hurtful.  

On behalf of the constituency, we represent and our equity stakeholders, we are asking you to
reconsider.  This is an issue of racial trauma and racial justice.  It also speaks to the racial climate of the
college, which includes a lack of sensitivity for peoples of African ancestry.  If you would like to set aside
some time to meet and dialogue further about the matter, we welcome the invitation.  Please know that
without a remedy to mitigate the harm imposed by debuting the production of the play, "By The River
Rivanna", we will have no other recourse but to resist and protest for change.  
Onward and Upward,
Jermaine Junius, PhD
Pan African Alliance

Co-Signatories
Black Collegians Program Umoja Community 
The Latino Center
The Latinx Collective
Asian Pacific Islander Desi American Alliance (APIDAA) Steering
Ethnic Studies Task Force
Faculty Senate, Equity & Diversity Committee
Equitizing Gateway Courses (EGC)
Equity Steering Committee
Student Equity Center 
Equity, Pathways, and Inclusion (EPI) 
History and Ethnic Studies Department 

Jermaine Junius, Ph.D., LCSW
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Assistant Professor
Communication & Media Studies Department
Santa Monica College
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Good morning Perviz,
 
Deirdre and I would like to schedule a time for us to meet with you to share a student
concern that was brought to our attention re: By the River Rivanna.  It’s a bit urgent as
Deirdre is flying to NYC tonight and not back until Thursday next week. If there's a chance to
jump on a zoom call today anytime between 10:30-1:30pm, we would greatly appreciate it. 
Please let us know.
 
Thanks!
 
Maria Muñoz, Ph.D.
She/Her/Ella (Learn about pronouns)
Interim Dean of Equity, Pathways and Inclusion (EPI)
Santa Monica College

 
The EPI Division is committed to closing our racial equity gaps.
To meet our commitment, the EPI division:

1. Collaborates with the various institutional bodies and key stakeholders to develop, align, support,
and assess equity-focused decision-making, programming, education, training and activities to
promote and advance equity, pathways and inclusion

2. Fosters greater collaboration, synergy, action, and change to build engaging, culturally-responsive,
inclusive, and equity-centered experiences for all our college campus community (students,
faculty, staff, administrators) who belong to historically racially minoritized and disenfranchised
groups. 

3. Identifies and work towards removing policies, practices, and procedures that create inequitable
barriers and experiences to the access and success of all our college campus community (students,
faculty, staff, administrators) who belong to historically racially minoritized and disenfranchised
groups. 

4. Centers a culture of care and belonging, both inside and outside the classroom, to improve the
racial climate at SMC

5. Draws from existing scholarship and evidence-based practices to provide leadership, support,
education and accountability in advancing equity, pathways and inclusion.

6. Works to cultivate an environment at SMC where equity and inclusion is infused in everything we
do
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